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MEETING NOTICE
(M.G.L Chapter 30A Sections 18-25)
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For discussion and possible vote:

PUBLIC HEARING
NEW 6-8 ELM PARK - A public hearing in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 40A, as 
amended, for the application made by Rod Rivera, 97 Beach Street, Malden, for the premises 
located at 6-8 Elm Park Groveland, Map 10 Lot 013, located in the Business (B) Zoning District 
for a Special Permit for a Parking Reduction in accordance with Section 50-9.4 and Section 50- 
14.6 of the Groveland Zoning Bylaw due to an increase in parking for the operation of a 
restaurant.

929-931 SALEM STREET: Project update.

BDLLIS WAY: Reduction of bond.

MINUTES: Acceptance of February 6, 2024, February 20, 2024, March 19, 2024, and March 25, 2024, 
meeting minutes.

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING

NEXT MEETING: To be determined.

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE - Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meeting excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays.
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Annie Schindler

From: Jeffrey Gillen
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 10:36 AM
To: Annie Schindler; Rebecca Oldham; Samuel Joslin; HealthAgent; Lori Bentsen; Julie Yebba;

Kevin Snow; Colin Stokes; Robert Valentine; Jeffrey Dalton; Renny Carroll; 
bligols@comcast.net; Chris Goodwin; mdempsey444 (mdempsey444@comcast.net)

Subject: RE: Zoning Board & Planning Board Applications for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant)

Good morning, 
 
I like the idea of offering a place for locals to visit in Town.  However, I am curious as to what is meant by “ have 
implemented measures to miƟgate any potenƟal impact on parking availability in the area.”  There is no parking allowed 
on Rt. 113 and Rt. 97 does not offer any parking in the square.  With five (5) employees taking up parking spots I think 
parking may be a concern for the patrons if this establishment is busy. 
 
Jeffrey T. Gillen  
Chief of Police  
Notary Public  
FBI NA Session #250  
   
Groveland Police Department  
181 Main Street  
Groveland, MA 01834  
Phone: (978) 521-1212  Fax: (978) 374-7676  
 
 

From: Annie Schindler <ASchindler@Grovelandma.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 10:04 AM 
To: Rebecca Oldham <ROldham@Grovelandma.com>; Samuel Joslin <sjoslin@Grovelandma.com>; HealthAgent 
<HealthAgent@Grovelandma.com>; Lori Bentsen <LBentsen@Grovelandma.com>; Julie Yebba 
<jyebba@Grovelandma.com>; Kevin Snow <ksnow@grovelandlight.com>; Colin Stokes <cstokes@Grovelandma.com>; 
Jeffrey Gillen <jgillen@grovelandpolice.com>; Robert Valentine <rvalentine@Grovelandma.com>; Jeffrey Dalton 
<JDalton@Grovelandma.com>; Renny Carroll <rcarroll@Grovelandma.com>; bligols@comcast.net; Chris Goodwin 
<chris_goodwin@comcast.net>; mdempsey444 (mdempsey444@comcast.net) <mdempsey444@comcast.net> 
Subject: Zoning Board & Planning Board Applications for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant) 
 
Morning everyone, 
 
The Planning Board and Zoning Board have each received applicaƟons for 6-8 Elm Park. The applicaƟon informaƟon for 
both can be found at the following link:   Elm Park #6-8 
 
Planning Board – The Planning Board received an applicaƟon for a special permit for a parking reducƟon at the site. If 
you have any comments on this applicaƟon, please let me know. The scheduled meeƟng date for this hearing is April 2, 
2024.  
 
Zoning Board – The Zoning Board received an applicaƟon for a special permit for the use of the property for a 
restaurant. If you have any comments on this applicaƟon, please let me know. The scheduled meeƟng date for this 
hearing is April 3, 2024.  
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For specific informaƟon on the criteria for a special permit that both Boards will be evaluaƟng these applicaƟons against, 
please look to our bylaw HERE, and addiƟonally HERE for the parking reducƟon request.  
 
Best, 
 
Annie Schindler 
Town Planner & Conservation Agent 
Town of Groveland | 978.556.7214 
 
The Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office has determined that most e-mails to and from municipal offices and officials 
are public records.  Consequently, confidentiality should not be expected. 
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Annie Schindler

From: HealthAgent
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 2:32 PM
To: Annie Schindler; Rebecca Oldham; Samuel Joslin; Lori Bentsen; Julie Yebba; Kevin Snow; 

Colin Stokes; Jeffrey Gillen; Robert Valentine; Jeffrey Dalton; Renny Carroll; 
bligols@comcast.net; Chris Goodwin; mdempsey444 (mdempsey444@comcast.net)

Subject: RE: Zoning Board & Planning Board Applications for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant)

The Board of Health has not received a plan for the proposed restaurant so I can not approve a restaurant at this Ɵme. 
 
A plan has been requested but has not been received as of this date. 
 
 
 
Rosemary Decie, RS 
Health Agent 
Town of Groveland 
183 Main St. 
Groveland, MA 01834 
978.556.7211 
 
 
 
 
 

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

From: Robert Valentine
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 1:06 PM
To: Jeffrey Gillen; Annie Schindler; Rebecca Oldham; Samuel Joslin; HealthAgent; Lori 

Bentsen; Julie Yebba; Kevin Snow; Colin Stokes; Jeffrey Dalton; Renny Carroll; 
bligols@comcast.net; Chris Goodwin; mdempsey444 (mdempsey444@comcast.net)

Subject: RE: Zoning Board & Planning Board Applications for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant)

AŌernoon, 
 
I also have concerns regarding parking, the prior restaurant, when busy, had parking along the one-way secƟon of Elm 
Park blocking access to the businesses and homes on that side of the road. If an emergency were to occur accessibility 
for emergency vehicles is greatly hindered. Would like to see what the measures are going to be to miƟgate the 
potenƟal impact on parking availability in the area. 
 
Thank You 
 
Chief ValenƟne 
 

From: Jeffrey Gillen <jgillen@grovelandpolice.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 10:36 AM 
To: Annie Schindler <ASchindler@Grovelandma.com>; Rebecca Oldham <ROldham@Grovelandma.com>; Samuel Joslin 
<sjoslin@Grovelandma.com>; HealthAgent <HealthAgent@Grovelandma.com>; Lori Bentsen 
<LBentsen@Grovelandma.com>; Julie Yebba <jyebba@Grovelandma.com>; Kevin Snow <ksnow@grovelandlight.com>; 
Colin Stokes <cstokes@Grovelandma.com>; Robert Valentine <rvalentine@Grovelandma.com>; Jeffrey Dalton 
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
 
 



2

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

From: Kevin Snow <ksnow@grovelandlight.com>
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 1:15 PM
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

My only commentary is that the applicant (and the building owner) be reminded that access to 
the  electrical/metering room should not be blocked.  We have in the past needed to access the room by entering 
the establishment rather than by the back door (at Family AƯair’s driveway. 
 
Otherwise I wish the best of luck to them! 
 
Thanks, 
 
-Kevin 
 
 

 

Kevin Snow 
General Manager/Lineman 1st Class 
Groveland Municipal Light Department 
 

Phone: 978-372-1671   
Mobile: 978-304-2078 
Email: ksnow@grovelandlight.com 
 

944 Salem Street 
Suite A 
Groveland, MA 01834 
 

www.grovelandlight.com 
 

 
 
 
 

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

From: Michael Dempsey <mdempsey444@comcast.net>
Sent: Monday, March 11, 2024 3:37 PM
To: Annie Schindler; Rebecca Oldham; Samuel Joslin; HealthAgent; Lori Bentsen; Julie Yebba;

'Kevin Snow'; Colin Stokes; Jeffrey Gillen; Robert Valentine; Jeffrey Dalton; Renny Carroll; 
bligols@comcast.net; 'Chris Goodwin'

Subject: RE: Zoning Board & Planning Board Applications for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant)

Hi Annie, 
 
As a member of the former Elm Square CommiƩee weighing in on parking, there were many potenƟal soluƟons to 
parking issues in the square we suggested. 
There is the nearby municipal lot where employees could be required to park. 
There are also privately owned lots in the square that the restaurant could negoƟate with the owners for space 
especially in the evenings. Since this space was already a restaurant, I think we should encourage new businesses that 
want to come to Groveland and not make it overly burdensome to get permits. I hope we can find a way to get them 
here. 
 
Thanks, 
Mike 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
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
Jeffrey Gillen <jgillen@grovelandpolice.com>; Robert ValenƟne <rvalenƟne@Grovelandma.com>; Jeffrey Dalton 
<JDalton@Grovelandma.com>; Renny Carroll <rcarroll@Grovelandma.com>; bligols@comcast.net; Chris Goodwin 
<chris_goodwin@comcast.net>; mdempsey444 
(mdempsey444@comcast.net) <mdempsey444@comcast.net> 
Subject: Zoning Board & Planning Board ApplicaƟons for 6-8 Elm Park (Mexican Restaurant) 
 
Morning everyone, 
 
The Planning Board and Zoning Board have each received applicaƟons for 6-8 Elm Park. The applicaƟon informaƟon for 
both can be found at the following 
link:  [?Folder icon]  Elm Park 
#6-8<hƩps://grovelandma1-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/aschindler_grovel 
andma_com/Eim_iiBzFcJLsekvtT2O6E4B7Gp6haq2nlKBqiJ1S8BOPg?e=0MJwcv> 
 
Planning Board - The Planning Board received an applicaƟon for a special permit for a parking reducƟon at the site. If you 
have any comments on this applicaƟon, please let me know. The scheduled meeƟng date for this hearing is April 2, 2024. 
 
Zoning Board - The Zoning Board received an applicaƟon for a special permit for the use of the property for a restaurant. 
If you have any comments on this applicaƟon, please let me know. The scheduled meeƟng date for this hearing is April 3, 
2024. 
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For specific informaƟon on the criteria for a special permit that both Boards will be evaluaƟng these applicaƟons against, 
please look to our bylaw HERE<hƩps://ecode360.com/35392109#35392109>, and addiƟonally 
HERE<hƩps://ecode360.com/35391700#35391700> for the parking reducƟon request. 
 
Best, 
 
Annie Schindler 
Town Planner & ConservaƟon Agent 
Town of Groveland | 978.556.7214 
 
The Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office has determined that most e-mails to and from municipal offices and 
officials are public records. 
Consequently, confidenƟality should not be expected. 
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AGENDA

Study Goals & Process
Existing Conditions & Findings

Stakeholder Sessions
Draft Strategies



Study Goals & Process



STUDY GOALS AND PROCESS 

1. Document existing parking supply and daily 
demand

2. Improve parking system for residents, 
employees, customers, and visitors

3. Identify and recommend parking supply 
efficiencies/opportunities to improve 
parking in areas of higher demand

4. Develop flexible parking standards to 
support Elm Square development



STUDY SCHEDULE

Tasks Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
TASK 1
Project Kick-off/Data 
Collection
TASK 2
Existing Conditions

TASK 3
Outreach

TASK 4
Parking Activity Evaluation

TASK 5
Parking Management 
Strategies
TASK 6
Draft Recommendations & 
Final Plan



Existing Conditions & 
Findings



STUDY AREA

Elm Square

Town 
Facilities



EXISTING PARKING SUPPLY

6% on-
street

37 spaces

94% off-
street

587 spaces

Total Spaces = 624 
Private Parking

242 spaces

Public Parking
382 spaces

Restricted
119 spaces

Publicly 
Accessible 
505 spaces
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EXISTING PARKING DEMAND

• Weekday peak utilization
• 6PM: 23%

• Demand is concentrated in 
Elm Square 

Pines Recreational 
field experiences 

moderate demand

Parking facilities 
west of Elm Park 
are busier but 

have capacity
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EXISTING PARKING DEMAND

• Weekend peak utilization
• Saturday, 9AM: 12%

• Elm Square experiences 
low parking demand 

Town Hall parking 
lots are nearly 

vacant

Parking facilities in 
Elm Square are 
nearly vacant
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PUBLIC VS PRIVATE PARKING DEMAND

• During the week, public parking is more 
utilized than private parking

• Private parking peaks during lunch hour

WEEKDAY PUBLIC PARKING (ALL) WEEKDAY PRIVATE PARKING (ALL)

Public Parking

382 spaces

Private Parking

242 spaces



PARKING DEMAND IN ELM SQUARE

• Total = 192 spaces
• Peak weekday demand

• 11AM = 34%
• 12 spaces on Elm Park experience 

higher demand
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Customer Only Parking 
lots experience 

midday demand

Elm Park public 
parking is busy 

Publicly Accessible 
Parking

147 spaces

Restricted Parking
45 spaces



MULTIMODAL CONDITIONS

No dedicated 
bicycle facilities

Limited to no 
sidewalks

No sidewalks or 
safe crossings

Minimal traffic 
calming 

infrastructure 

Parking facilities 
lack 

wayfinding/signage

Sidewalks/Pathways are 
not accessible/bicycle/

pedestrian friendly



Parking Inventory & Utilization Key Findings 

1. Most on-street parking and public off-street parking do not have 
regulations or signage 

2. Most off-street parking facilities in the core of Elm Square are private 
and for customer-use only or restricted 

3. The core of Elm Square does not experience high utilization during the 
week or weekend (parking is available during all peak periods)

4. Publicly-available parking is plentiful but not clear, contributing to 
perception of low availability



Stakeholder 
Discussions



Stakeholder Discussions
Who did we meet with?

• Elm Square 
Committee

• Town Staff

• Elm Square 
business & 
landowners

• Elm Square needs pedestrian-friendly 
improvements to increase visitor traffic 

• Informal shared parking occurs in the core of 
Elm Square, but visitors are not encouraged

• Current parking facilities do not adequately 
connect patrons to storefronts

• Limited opportunities for re-use of storefronts 
or in-fill development due to the lack of 
dedicated parking



Draft Strategies



Draft Strategies
Study Goals
• Document existing 

parking supply and daily 
demand 

• Improve parking system 
for residents, employees, 
customers, and visitors

• Identify and recommend 
parking supply 
efficiencies/opportunities 
to improve parking in 
areas of higher demand

• Develop flexible parking 
standards to support Elm 
Square development

1. Designate publicly-available off-street 
parking with signage

2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square 
corridors

3. Create a more walkable Elm Square

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square

5. Reconfigure existing parking lots to expand 
shared supply



1. Designate off-street parking with signage and wayfinding

• Add wayfinding signage to off-street 
lots & key Elm Square “entrance” 
areas

• Use parking and gateway wayfinding 
signage to:
• Intercept vehicle traffic
• Direct people to other locations 

downtown
• Provide estimated walk times
• Help customers return to their 

vehicles
• Help people on bikes find their way 

to/through Elm Square destinations
• Sign shared private lots as “Elm Square 

Parking”



1. Designate off-street parking with signage and wayfinding

• Create a wayfinding signage 
plan
• Designate specific locations 

to place gateway & 
parking signs

• Direct visitors to key 
destinations POST 

OFFICE

TOWN 
HALL

PERRY 
PARK 



2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square corridors

• Slow down traffic and 
encourage visitation

• Install on-street parking at: 
• Elm Park
• South Main Street
• Route 113



2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square corridors

Elm Park
Existing 

Conditions 
(~12 spaces)

ELM PARK/
RTE 97

ELM PARK



2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square corridors

Elm Park Proposed Design 
(~26 spaces) +14

ELM PARK/
RTE 97

ELM PARK



2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square corridors

South Main 
Street

Proposed Design 
(~24 spaces) +4

Existing 
Conditions

(~20 spaces)



2. Add on-street parking on key Elm Square corridors

Proposed Design 
(~6 spaces) +6



3. Create a more walkable Elm Square

• Improve safety conditions and 
accessibility for those who walk, 
bike, or roll 
• Add crosswalks
• Add traffic calming elements to 

roadways
• Add ADA accessibility elements 

(ADA ramps, detectable panels)
• Implement barriers between 

vehicles and pedestrians
• Add lighting in off-street parking 

facilities and along sidewalks 
where necessary

• Engage the Pentucket Arts 
Foundation to implement murals



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

Topsfield, MA (Fall 2020) Topsfield, MA (Fall 2020)

Traffic calming 
- bump outs

Pedestrian facilities 
– outdoor dining 

spaces



4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square

• Unlock “restricted” parking 
facilities

• Proactively work with off-street 
lot owners

• Many forms of shared parking:
• Complimentary uses
• A specific group, i.e.

employees
• General public
• Special events
• Consolidate lots

Publicly Accessible 
Parking

147 spaces

Restricted Parking
45 spaces

Certain 
private lots 
never over 
60% utilized

Weekday 11AM

Approx. 100 
spaces 

available at 
11AM



• Provide public incentives for 
private lot owners to 
encourage sharing, such as:
• Snow clearance
• Maintenance
• Signage

• Keep sample agreements (if 
needed) on file at Town Hall & 
maintain list of available shared 
spaces in Elm Square

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



MAIN ST/
RTE 113

Post Office

Existing 
Conditions 

(~23 spaces)

Limited signage

Unpaved/spaces 
unclear

Ex.: 301 & 291 
Main Street

Town-owned 
property

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



Ex.: 301 & 291 
Main Street

MAIN ST/
RTE 113

Properly repave lot

Add parking

Unlock parking 
closer to the Square

Post Office

Proposed 
Design 

(~33 spaces) 
+ 10

Town-owned 
property

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



Why should you share your parking facility?
• Create “new” parking for business patrons during off-hours for adjacent, different uses
• This happens already among regular users—but visitors don’t know it’s ok 

How can the Town help promote shared parking? 
• Use Town as a mediator between involved parties, ensuring land rights are protected 

and maintaining any grandfathered zoning privileges
• Act as neutral arbiter / “middle man” to lessen landowner effort in arranging fair 

designation of spaces between private and public, establishing times and days of 
week for sharing, and ensuring fair protections and exit clauses

• Use Town as a resource to find sample shared parking agreements, overcome liability 
concerns, and provide best practice approaches

What are the benefits of sharing your facility?
• Town can offer in-kind services, to re-pave lots, add landscaping, provide lighting and 

signage, maintain the facility, and provide winter maintenance/plowing services

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



Local Shared Parking Examples

• Allows shared parking in 
all districts for uses with 
different peak periods (i.e., 
offices vs residential 
buildings), allowing 
reductions of up to o1/2 of 
the minimum parking 
required for the uses 
separately. 

• Requires reduced parking 
demand documentation & 
notification of open space 
for each parking space 
not provided due to 
shared parking

• Allows shared parking 
between multiple uses, so 
long as the involved part 
provides the amount of 
parking in proportion with 
the use requiring the 
greatest # of spaces

• The Planning Board can  
approve a reduced in the 
number of parking spaces

• A written agreement must 
be signed between all 
involved parties

• Can implement shared 
parking by special permit 
(upon Planning Board 
approval)

• Up to 50% of required 
spaces can be shared 
(with uses of different peak 
periods)

• Involved parties must sign 
a joint-use agreement

West Concord, MAMarlborough, MA Stoneham, MA

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



36

West Concord, MA

These are 6 private parcels sharing 
their properties’ parking as one

4. Create a shared parking program & 
encourage shared parking in Elm Square



5. Reconfigure existing parking lots and open spaces

• Beautify parking facilities 
• Create more parking spaces in current 

facilities
• Use shared parking agreements to open 

restricted parking lots
• Create attractive spaces for Farmers 

Markets, parks, and Elm Square events



5. Reconfigure existing parking lots and open spaces

Jon Val Hair 
Salon

Existing 
Conditions

(~21 spaces)

ELM
 PA

RK

Jon Val Hair 
Salon



5. Reconfigure existing parking lots and open spaces

Jon Val Hair 
Salon

Design 1
(~26 spaces) 

+ 5

ELM
 PA

RK

Jon Val Hair 
Salon

Could use the lot for 
Farmers Market 
during off-peak 

days/times

Repave/redesign 
parking spaces



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



THANK YOU!





















Brad Ligols, Chair 

Walter Sorenson, Vice-Chair 

John Stokes III 

Chris Goodwin 

DJ McNulty 

Jason Naves, Associate 

Town of Groveland 
Economic Development 

Planning & Conservation Department 

Planning Board 

183 Main Street 

 Groveland, MA 01834  
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BOARD: Planning Board 

MEETING DATE: February 6, 2024 

MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 

TIME: 7:00 PM 

COMMISSIONERS 

PRESENT: 
Brad Ligols, DJ McNulty, Jason Naves, Chris Goodwin 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: John Stokes III, Walter F. Sorenson Jr. 

GUESTS: Annie Schindler (Town Planner & Conservation Agent), Sam 

Joslin (Building Commissioner), Chief Robert Valentine (Fire 

Department), Deputy Chief Daniel Briscoe (Fire Department), 

Kevin Snow (GMLD), Craig & Kathy Weaver (25 Cannon Hill 

Ave), Scott Edwards (GML Coop), Steve Bern (Citizens Energy 

Corp), Stephen Herling (Citizens Energy Corp) 

 

Note: Minutes are not a transcript; see the recorded meeting for verbatim information.  

 

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2021, “An Act Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures 

Adopted During the State of Emergency”, extended by the Governor on March 30, 2023, which extended 

permission for boards and commissions to conduct remote meetings, the Planning Board conducted this 

meeting in a hybrid format.  

 

MOTION: Goodwin motions to open the Planning Board meeting. McNulty seconds the motion. Voted 

all in favor. The motion passes unanimously.  

 

NEW PROPOSED ZONING BYLAW CHANGES: Pursuant to M.G.L. Ch.40A, Section 5 to consider 

amendments and additions to the Zoning Bylaw as follows: 

1) Addition of a Battery Energy Storage System section to Article 7, Special Use Regulations. 

2) Addition of a section to Article 13, Section 2(A) Applicability for Site Plan Review, to require a 

site plan review for Battery Energy Storage Systems.  

Ligols: Reads the above legal notice. 

Joslin: The Battery Energy Storage Systems Bylaw are something that myself, the Town Planner and the 

Municipal Light Department General Manager thought were necessary to bring forwards as an article 

because there is interest in people putting them in. If we don’t have a bylaw in place, they would be 

allowed in town as they are protected in 40A 3 as a utility. If we don’t have anything in place, we have no 

prevue over anything that goes in. We can reasonably regulate it, but not prohibit it. We took the state 

model bylaw and all the best parts of other bylaws that other Towns have created. It allows us control for 

site development, construction of the battery, safety features, decommissioning, bonding for 

decommissioning, how emergency response will be dealt with, etc. It puts a burden on the applicant to 

prove that it’s safe.  

APPROVED X-X-2024 
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Snow: It’s usually paired with a substation, and you can use it in various ways. You can store energy and 

dispense it at peak times. It also reduces capacity and transmission cost. People who use these systems try 

to hit these peaks to reduce these costs. This is usually why you see this level of systems. Generally, they 

are container sized systems. There are batteries stored in them and they typically have fire suppressing in 

the container. The other thing you can do with them is to power portions of a town during a power outage. 

You could also use it for frequency regulations.  

McNulty: Is it on standby or is it constantly on at a low voltage? 

Snow: It would always be on unless it was taken out for service.  

Ligols: What do you do with the batteries when they’re no good? 

Burn: Generally, when you put together a large system like this there are a lot of automated systems and 

what happens is cell level management. We have a constant look at everything that is happening. If we 

end up having a thermal event, we have controls that as soon as there’s a change in temperature or voltage 

the systems shut everything down. There is a lot of mitigation that’s goes into these systems. There’s gas, 

smoke, and fire detection, typically the system’s air on the side of caution which will then such down, 

which will trigger the operator of the system to go to the site and see what is going on. In Wesley people 

are asking about having a water connection to the containers which would allow you to flood the 

container and be more direct than putting water on top of it.  

McNulty: Are they fan cooled? 

Burn: Most have HVAC. They are placed on foundation; there are no longer walk-in containers. Now they 

are more side-door containers which is a safety measure. They are essentially un-manned, it’s not large 

like a solar field. 

Joslin: If you look at page 7, 8 and 9 of the bylaws it deals with construction standards, the testing 

standards, required plans, emergency plans, operation and maintenance plans, etc. The goal is that not 

much can happen there without us being notified.  

Valentine: These will have to meet many requirements that we have. Our job will be to ensure things stay 

cool until the system can regulate itself. If there were to be an issue the company that owns the battery 

would have to get a HAZMAT team in to mitigate the site.  

Ligols: What if National Grid came in and wanted to put a system at their substation on King St right 

now? 

Snow: I would have no control over that.  

Planner: The Board would also have no control. That is why we have proposed this bylaw.  

Ligols: What is the State going to do? How much time do we have to prepare? 

Joslin: The horse has already left the barn. The State has determined that these are allowed under Chapter 

40A Section 3. If we don’t have a bylaw in place, they will just be able to go in without shading, etc. and 

other considerations of the residents. This allows us to require applicants to be required to train our public 

safety and have communications with the Town.  

MOTION: Ligols motions to recommend that the Board accepts the addition of a Battery Energy Storage 

System section to Article 7, Special Use Regulations with the current language. Also to recommend 

Addition of a section to Article 13, Section 2(A) Applicability for Site Plan Review, to require a site plan 

review for Battery Energy Storage Systems as it’s been written. McNulty seconds the motion. Voted all in 

favor. The motion passes unanimously. 

 

HOMESTEAD LANE: 30-foot no cut zone issue along Cannon Hill Ave.  

MOTION: McNulty motions to table. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in favor. The motion 

passes unanimously. 
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929-931 SALEM STREET: Review of vault storage plans.  

Joslin: Last week we had reports of work being done at the site. It was confirmed that asphalt was dug up 

and fencing was installed. I reached out to the attorney, and they informed me that they were preparing to 

install the vault. We informed him that their engineering report was not complete, nor had they applied for 

the proper permits. We are still waiting for the final TEC reports. The contractor called to ask if they 

could put in their pilings because they had a crane on site, and I said they could do it at risk. Beyond that 

work they are not to do any more work. Our Health Agent is concerned that it is in the wrong location, 

and too close to the leaching field.  

Ligols: What steps are you going to take? We let them open with a temporary CO a couple of years ago. 

Joslin: Because they worked without a permit they will have a double permit fee, beyond that we are 

waiting to see what is applied for with a permit. A double permit fee is a good show that we are serious.  

Ligols: Is TEC going to be present for the pour? 

Planner: Yes.  

Goodwin: Don’t we want them to confirm that they are outside of their leach area before they proceed? 

Joslin: Yes, they should do that because it would be a very expensive mistake if that was the case. This is 

their project to run, I’m not going to babysit.  

McNulty: What are the next steps if they start building? 

Joslin: They would be shut down. 

 

142 KING STREET: Close escrow account for initial application. 

Planner: This was a single-lot subdivision, the original applicants brought it through the permitting 

process and then sold it to a new owner. The original applicants still have monies in an escrow account so 

these funds should be released. We do have an escrow account for the new owner.  

MOTION: McNulty motions to close the escrow account from the initial application for 142 King Street. 

Naves seconds the motion. Voted all in favor. The motion passes unanimously. 

 

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 

Planner: At 6-8 Elm Park there is a coming soon sign for a Mexican restaurant. The Building Commission 

issued a cease and desist because they were working without a permit. They have also been informed they 

have to file a permit for a special permit for a parking reduction with the Planning Board and a special 

permit for use with eh Zoning Board. We have two potential upcoming projects. A subdivision at 181R 

School St and an affordable development at Garrison St which would have to go through the Zoning 

Board. 912 Salem St is almost ready to have their permit signed, they have one small remaining comment 

from TEC. 

 

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 

None. 

 

NEXT MEETING February 20, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Ligols motions to adjourn at 8:10 PM. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in favor. The 

motion passes unanimously. 



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

MEETING DATE: February 20, 2024 

MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 

TIME: 7:00 PM 

COMMISSIONERS 

PRESENT: 
Brad Ligols, DJ McNulty, Jason Naves, Chris Goodwin 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Walter F. Sorenson Jr. 

GUESTS: Annie Schindler (Town Planner & Conservation Agent) 

 
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

929- 931 SALEM STREET: Review of vault storage plans. 

Planner: I received an updated set of plans late Friday. I sent them off to TEC today. The applicant was 

missing the review comments that normally accompany an updated plan. I’m waiting to hear back from 

the applicant to see if they are going to provide those. 

 

912 SALEM STREET: Signatures on special permit.  

Planner: We were waiting on TECs final report, which we did receive so they are all set.  

The Board signs the special permit.  

 

BILLIS WAY: As Built/Roadway Acceptance.  

Planner: I was hopeful that we would’ve gotten a review back from TEC, but we have not yet. The Town 

Meeting is quickly approaching so we may have to have an earlier meeting than our next meeting on 

March 20, 2024. They initially submitted this in the fall, and they were missing a lot of stuff, but this 

updated plan seems to have everything.  

 

CORESPONDENCE: 944 Salem Street ZBA Application. 

Planner: This is where the Municipal Light Department has their headquarters. At the unit all the way to 

the right they are looking to put in a vehicle repair shop for municipal light plan departments. If anyone 

has any comments, please let me know.  

 

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 

APPROVED X-X-2024 
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Planner: There is one other thing in the meeting packet from John Stokes III. He has resigned. With the 

timing of his resigning there is enough time for the seat to be on the next election on May 6th. People are 

still able to pull papers, the Town Clerk is able to assist with that process. Not much new otherwise.  

 

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 

None. 

 

NEXT MEETING March 19, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: McNulty motions to adjourn. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voting aye; all in favor. Voted 

unanimously in favor, the motion passes.  



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

MEETING DATE: March 19, 2024 

MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 

TIME: 7:00 PM 

COMMISSIONERS 

PRESENT: 
B. Ligols, C. Goodwin, D. McNulty, J. Naves 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: W.F. Sorenson Jr. 

GUESTS: None 

 

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

 

CALL TO ORDER  

MOTION: Goodwin motions to open the March 19, 2024, Planning Board Meeting. McNulty seconds 

the motion. Voted all in favor, the motion passes unanimously in favor.  

929 – 931 SALEM STREET: Project Update  

Planner: In your meeting packet you have correspondence from Sam Joslin, Building Commissioner, one 

addressed to the Board and one to the Owner. Since then, I’ve received response comments from the 

Applicants engineer and TEC has those and is reviewing them. I also received their construction control 

affidavit for the slab of the foundation.  

McNulty: Is this information on our website? 

Planner: It is not, but anyone can come to my office, give me a call, or email me and receive the 

information. It is all public record, so anyone can receive them.  

Ligols: To give some background, this went back and forth with the Board. There would be a witness to 

the structural pour of the vault. It is a big problem, what is going on down there. I know Sam has taken 

some action, but I do understand what needs to be done. How do we know how the rebar was tied and the 

poly barrier is in. Now they have to core a seamless floor. How do you pour a floor over another floor not 

to crack. 

Goodwin: I have issues with how this has gone down. How are we supposed to know what was done. It is 

flying in the face of the Board and Building Commissioner. It calls into question the management team 

working on the project. We should be concerned about how they move forward.  

Ligols: A total disregard for what we do. Can we bring these engineers in to ensure that they are going to 

follow the letter of the law, so we don’t have another Valley Screw issue? I think it’s a pretty big deal. 

APPROVED X-X-2024 
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McNulty: I think that the Building Commissioner has done a good job at being political with it. They 

haven’t done what they are supposed to do. If the Building Commission sees a concern, then I would see 

bringing in the engineers. 

Ligols: We want to be kept in the loop. Do we know if it is in the right location? 

Planner: We just got those plans, and it is outside of the wetland buffer zone, and the Board of Health is 

reviewing them now.  

Ligols: I would just say, continue to keep us in the loop. I may still want to have the engineer come in to 

explain how they are going to make this better with the Building Commissioner as well. I want to hear it 

myself. If it were up to me, because of the sensitivity of it, I would just say to rip it out and redo it. I know 

it’s not my call.  

McNulty: The Building Commissioner has been lenient. Allowing them to proceed with the pour, 

knowing that TEC must confirm the reports. How far does this go? 

Planner: I can tell you that the last update the Building Commissioner sent to the project team was that if 

there were any more infractions, he would be reaching out to the various licensing boards that are.  

Ligols: He’s also on a temporary CO. 

Goodwin: That aside, it’s the blatant disregard for what they are supposed to do. Now we have to presume 

based on calculations and something we didn’t see to trust it’s okay. And they keep trying to work.  

Ligols: This is also Zone II Aquifer; these tanks were going to be placed in sand. You can’t put tanks in 

sand in the aquifer. They came in with consultants saying they would be vaulted, the Fire Department, 

with inspections.  

Board: Please make sure we are still in the loop moving forward. 

Naves: I have faith in the Building Commissioner and our engineers to do the right thing.  

 

BILLIS WAY: As Built Acceptance, Roadway Recommendation 

Planner: Unfortunately, the Highway Superintendent is not able to recommend the acceptance of the road 

as there is an issue with a manhole cover hitting a plow. He is meeting onsite with the developer this week 

to hopefully remedy the situation. Because of this, I recommend that the Board meet on Monday March 

25, 2024, prior to the Board of Selectmen meeting, to hopefully be able to make a recommendation so 

that the timing will work out with the warrant.  

Board: That will work.  

 

TOWN MEETING UPDATE: Discussion and decision of organization of Board with remedied 

appointment terms.  

Planner: As the Board is aware, the terms for the Planning Board elections have gotten out of sync. This 

proposed warrant language would remedy this issue. It would allow for those in the 3 concurrent 5-year 

terms to finish serving their term, and then when that term is up the seat would change from a 5-year term 

to a 3-year term. This would be the same with one other seat, the third would remain the same. The Board 

just needs to choose which two seats will be changed when the term is over. The three seats are Chris 

Goodwin’s, DJ McNulty’s, and Walter F. Sorenson Jr.’s seat.  

Board: Chris Goodwin can take the first spot and DJ McNulty can take the second spot.  

 

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 

Planner: At our next meeting, the Board will be having a public hearing on 6-8 Elm Park for a special 

permit for a parking reduction. I have already received comments back from different 

Boards/Departments and I will be sharing the parking study with the Board prior to the meeting for 

review. 
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OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 

Planner: You will see you have a letter from Angus Jennings, who is on the Economic Development 

Committee, regarding his idea to amend our zoning bylaw to allow recreational marijuana growing, not 

retail. If the Board is interested, I can coordinate with him to draft something up to be ready for the next 

Town Meeting.  

Board: We welcome further discussion on this topic. 

 

MEETING MINUTES: Acceptance of October 30, 2023, and November 28, 2023, meeting minutes.  

MOTION: McNulty motions to accept the meeting minutes from October 30, 2023, and November 28, 

2023. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in favor. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

NEXT MEETING March 25, 2024, April 2, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Ligols motions to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 PM. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in 

favor. The motion passed unanimously.  

 



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

MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 

TIME: 6:00 PM 

COMMISSIONERS 

PRESENT: 
B. Ligols, C. Goodwin, J. Naves 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: D. McNulty, W.F. Sorenson Jr. 

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

MOTION: Goodwin motions to open the March 25, 2024, Planning Board Meeting. Naves seconds the 

motion. Voted all in favor, the motion passes unanimously in favor.  

 

BILLIS WAY: As Built Acceptance, Roadway Recommendation 

Planner: I added to your meeting packet correspondence from the Highway Superintendent 

recommending acceptance of Billis Way. 

MOTION: Goodwin motions to recommend Billis Way for street acceptance. Naves seconds the motion. 

Voted all in favor, the motion passes unanimously in favor.  

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 

None. 

 

NEXT MEETING April 2, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Ligols motions to adjourn the meeting at 7:02 PM. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in 

favor. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

APPROVED X-X-2024 
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